IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

VICTOR KLOKOC,

Defendant/Appellant,)

vs.

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Plaintiff/Appellee.)

JAN 5 1000

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

LARRY B. HENDERSON ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER Fla. Bar No. 353973 112-A Orange Avenue Daytona Beach, Fla. 32114 (904) 252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The State indicted Victor Klokoc for the first-degree murder of his daughter, Elizabeth Klokoc. (R518-19) $\frac{1}{2}$ Court appointed psychiatrists examined Mr. Klokoc and found him competent to stand trial. (R532-35) While represented by the Public Defender, Mr. Klokoc pled guilty to first-degree murder $\frac{2}{2}$ in the Circuit Court in and for Brevard County, the Honorable Edward M. Jackson presiding. (R279-317,539-43) At that time Mr. Klokoc waived a jury sentencing recommendation and told the Court that he did not wish to present mitigation. (R315-21)

The Public Defender orally moved to withdraw on December 2, 1988, due to Mr. Klokoc's refusal to participate in his own defense. (R678-714) The motion was denied and Mr. Klokoc was warned by the court that if he did not cooperate with the Public

^{1/(}R) refers to the record on appeal; (SR) refers to the supplemental record.
2/ Violation of Section 782.04(1)(a)1 Florida Statutes (1987)

Defender, private counsel would be appointed to present mitigation pursuant to Hamblen v. State, 527 So.2d 800 (Fla.1988). (R686-705)

The penalty phase commenced December 14, 1988. At the inception of the hearing, the Public Defender renewed the motion to withdraw, again based on lack of cooperation from Mr. Klokoc. (R537-538,335) The court denied the motion and ordered that special counsel would be appointed to present mitigation in Mr. Klokoc's behalf. (R555-560,680-712) Though the state indicated that to do so might jeopardize the result, the hearing continued in the absence of the specially appointed counsel when Mr. Klokoc agreed that it should go forward. (R348) Mr. Klokoc ratified the previous waiver of a jury sentencing recommendation as follows:

The Court: Let me ask you this question, and pay attention, do you still want the Court to proceed as the trier of the facts on the penalty proceeding?

Mr. Klokoc: Yes, I already waived that before and I'll stick with that, I keep that waived.

The Court: The Court has received two additional supplemental reports by Doctor Wooten and Doctor Greenblum which has indicated that you're competent to make this decision.

Mr. Klokoc: Right, you already have that and you have the PSI report, too, which that was dated back on the second.

(R348-49; SR 85-103)

Thereafter, the state presented the testimony of Dr. Greenblum, a psychiatrist who conducted a competency examination of Mr. Klokoc (R367-382), Detective Casey, a police officer who investigated the murder of Elizabeth Klokoc (R385-418), Deputy Walter, a deputy sheriff from Medina County, Ohio, who obtained a

statement from Mr. Klokoc after arresting him (R420-440), and Mrs. Klokoc, the defendant's wife, who described her marriage with Mr. Klokoc. (R441-478) Mr. Klokoc personally cross-examined each of these witnesses. Additionally, physical evidence was introduced, including tape cassette recordings made by Mr. Klokoc before and after the death of his daughter. State Exhibits 5-7.

The second evidentiary portion of the penalty phase, attended by the specially appointed counsel, occurred March 17, 1989. At the inception of that hearing Mr. Klokoc again declined active participation on his behalf by the Public Defender. (R6-9) The state presented the testimony of Victor and Jason Klokoc, Mr. Klokoc's sons, who both described life in the Klokoc household. (R15-49,50-76) Mr. Klokoc personally cross-examined his children, as did the special counsel.

Mr. Klokoc rested without presenting any evidence. (R77) Special counsel then moved for a sentence of life imprisonment, arguing that the state had failed to prove the existence of any statutory aggravating circumstance as a matter of law. (R77) The motion was denied. (R78) Special counsel then called Stephanie Rydzynski, Mr. Klokoc's sister, who described Mr. Klokoc's past and circumstances surrounding his apprehension. (R78-130,204-07); Betty Crosby, who was the records custodian for Circles of Care mental health facility (R131-142); Dr. Wickham, a forensic pathologist who reviewed the autopsy reports and concluded that Elizabeth Klokoc was asleep when killed instantly (R146-153); and, Dr. Wooten, the other psychiatrist who performed a competency examination of Mr. Klokoc and found him competent. (R154-197)

At the conclusion of the evidentiary proceeding, Mr. Klokoc ratified his waiver of a jury sentencing recommendation. (R223) Thereafter, concluding arguments were given by the prosecutor (R238-255), the defendant personally (R255-257), and the specially appointed counsel. (R257-275) The court deferred sentencing to allow review and due consideration of the evidence.

On April 21, 1989, the trial court adjudicated Mr. Klokoc guilty of first-degree murder (R566-567) and sentenced him to death. (R568-569) The court entered written findings of fact indicating that one statutory aggravating factor $\frac{3}{}$ had been proved (a cold, calculated and premeditated murder with no pretense of moral or legal justification) and that several mitigating circumstances had been established, including; no significant history of prior criminal activity; under the influence of mental or emotional disturbance when the capital felony was committed; impaired capacity to conform conduct to the requirements of law; Mr. Klokoc was a good provider for his family, despite his mental condition, and; the murder involved a domestic situation. (R570- 574, Appendix A).

The Public Defender was appointed to represent Mr. Klokoc for the purpose of the automatic appeal. (R577) Mr. Klokoc's attempt to dismiss the appeal was denied by this Court on October 31, 1989, and the undersigned was ordered to submit a truly adversary brief advancing Mr. Klokoc's "best interest". Counsel moved for clarification of the order to determine whether a brief

^{3/} Section 921.141(5)(i), Fla.Stat. (1987)

opposing imposition of the death penalty must be submitted, even if Mr. Klokoc did not feel that life imprisonment with no parole for 25 years was in his best interest. Upon being ordered to file a brief opposing the death sentence irrespective of Mr. Klokoc's personal position, Mr. Klokoc filed a petition for writ of certiorari in the United States Supreme Court, contending that Mr. Klokoc was being denied meaningful assistance of counsel on appeal due to his indigency. A stay of these proceedings was denied by the Honorable Justice Anthony Kennedy December 28, 1989; Certiorari remains pending. This brief follows opposing imposition of the death penalty, as ordered by this Court.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The Klokoc's came to America from Czechoslavokia. (R85)
Victor Klokoc's grandmother, as part of an arranged marriage, was
to have married one of the Klokoc boys; when she married the
brother instead, her family disowned her. (R85-86) Her husband
later died from a massive coronary when he was 36, which left her
alone to care for seven children. (R86) She ultimately locked
her children in a storage shed and committed suicide by hanging
herself in a washroom. (R86) Victor Klokoc's father was one of
those seven children. He, too, displayed mental infirmity during
his life; he was hospitalized for eight months due to combat
fatigue after World War II. (R83) The history of mental
infirmity in the Klokoc family also includes a mongoloid child
(R87) and a manic depressive schizophrenic who was taken to a
Veteran's Administration mental health facility after having made
death threats to Klokoc family members. (R83-84)

Victor Klokoc's life began July 19, 1945. (R615) His father, described as big and kindly but strict (R87), was also Victor's boy scout troop leader. While living in Cleveland, Victor and his father often went fishing and camping. (R87-88) Like most fathers, Victor's put a lot of pressure on Victor to succeed at everything. (R88) Victor's two younger sisters had no trouble in school, but Victor stuttered and had a hard time remembering. (R88) His father tutored Victored at night and he would yell at Victor when he mispelled homework words. He was referred to as a "slow learner." (R88) Ultimately, Victor failed a grade. (R88)

Victor was present when his father, also at the age of 36, suffered a massive heart attack and died. (89-91) witnessed the efforts of the doctor trying to save his father, and Victor saw his mother become hysterical when the attempts to save his father failed. (R90-91) After kissing his father goodbye for the last time, Victor was told that he was now the man of the house, and he tried his best to take care of his mother and two younger sisters. (R91) Victor dropped out of school in the ninth grade. (R691) Victor began having unbearable headaches. (R97) He would cry and stay in his room, which was kept dark. (R97) He became extremely protective of his mother (R93), and got into fistfights with his mother's suitors because he felt they did not compare well with his father and were not good enough for his mother. (R92) On one occasion, Victor administered a beating to one suitor named "Frank" when Victor discovered Frank and his mother being intimate. (R93)

In 1960, Victor's mother married Joe Nemeck. (R93)

Nemeck, an alcoholic, would become drunk and fight with Victor's mother. (R93-94) Victor's mother remained severely depressed over the death of Victor's father. (R80) One day Victor found his mother collapsed in the kitchen after she attempted suicide. Victor put her in a bedroom, called the paramedics, and then fought with Nemeck until the paramedics arrived. (R94) Victor's mother eventually committed suicide on Thanksgiving in 1973. (R80-81)

Victor Klokoc married in 1967. (R441) The marriage yielded three children, Victor, Jr., Elizabeth, and Jason

Raymond. (R442) The marriage was stormy. The children "got basically almost everything they wanted. They had go-carts and Mopeds and cars. He would buy them cars if that's what they wanted. As kids they didn't do without." (R99) Yet, Mrs. Klokoc (Peggy) was dissatisfied with Victor, and considered him mean; Victor felt that she drank too much and did not discipline the children adequately. (R99) Mrs. Klokoc related several instances of abuse by Victor. For instance, she claimed that on August 7, 1987, Victor allegedly kidnapped her and took her to a Holiday Inn, where she was tied to a bed and raped for three or four hours. (R440-45) Afterward. Victor was involuntarily committed to Circles of Care mental hospital for five days in March of 1988, and when Victor was released a restraining order prevented him from seeing his family. (R19,451,573,474)

After reconcilliation, another incident occurred where Victor allegedly kidnapped Peggy on April 7, 1988, and locked her in the tool box in the back of his pick-up truck. (R446-47) That incident resolved by the couple deciding to take a vacation and simply get away. (R447) When they returned from the vacation Peggy decided to leave Victor, feeling that she would hurt or kill Victor if she did not leave. (R457-58) She conspired with her son, Jason, to leave and go to Cleveland, Ohio, to stay at a friend's house. (R459,462)

Victor desperately tried to find his wife and talk to her, but he could not find her or communicate with her. The longer Peggy remained hidden, the more frantic Victor became.

(R32) Victor began talking to himself, using a tape recorder to

preserve his thoughts during this period of time. (SR3-30) He intended that the tape be given to his daughter, Elizabeth ("Cia"). (SR3) The taped conversations start around July 9, 1988, where Victor talks of his efforts to find his wife, Peggy, by calling people in Alabama. (SR3-4) Rambling statements such as, "If Jason don't tell me where she's at, I'm afraid I might kill the kid and I'll have to live with that guilt the rest of my life and then she can live with it, too" run throughout these recordings. (SR 4)

As Victor's conversations with himself evolve, it is clear that Victor becomes more and more obsessed with speaking to Peggy, and Jason's refusal to tell him where Peggy was staying added to the intensity of Victor's frustration. For example, Victor states, "Well, I'm taking a ride over here to see Jason if he's at work or what and ask him just to tell me. If he's going to play games with me it's going to make me madder and madder. (SR8) After meeting with his son, Victor again voices his anger and belief that people are simply playing games with him:

I just stopped to see my son Jason. refuses to tell me where she's at. says he's going to try to call her tonight when he gets off work but she don't, he don't know if she's going to call me or not. So I'm just supposed to go and sit at the house and wait and wait for nothing. If he does that and keeps playing that game, I'm going to put a gun to his head, I'm going to blow him away, then he can, then the whole family can live with that and especially her. And then if she don't call me and tell me where she's at so I can come and talk to her, I will blow my youngest son away and then I can live with that guilt and so can the rest of my family. But I

hate to see him die, cause he's, he thinks it's a big joke, he thinks he's playing some type of funny game. But I don't want to see him go through life — he has the wrong idea that I really hurt his mother and this and that there. I went through the same bullshit when I was a kid about it that I was so scared. I was scared that my mother was having affairs with this and that there I figured it was hurting her and this and that there. And he's going through the same thing that I hurt her constantly. That's what she puts into his head so she can — and it's wrong what she does.

(SR8-9)

Victor is aware that he is becoming angrier and angrier, but he is unable to do anything about it; "I need something to take a little bit of the anger away from me. the anger keeps building. I can't eat, I haven't eat nothing since yesterday. I mean, you know, it's -- if you have to live like this, it's terrible. Just from a seventeen year old kid that don't want to tell me something that he's scared of his mother. I don't understand it. So I don't know what else to do." (SR12) Victor's perception is that his family is deliberately tormenting him, "It's -- you like to be alone, you can be alone. I don't like to be alone. I love someone, and the more I look at her pictures and this and that there, the sicker I get about it, you know. You know, what are you supposed to do, just wipe someone out of your mind and try to start over? Where the hell do you start, you know, who, who do you love again? You know, you date somebody and you build a love. I thought we built a love for twenty years, twenty one years, I don't know. But she keeps playing funny games with it." (SR16-17)

Victor indicates that he loves his daughter (Elizabeth) and his older son, and that Elizabeth wants him to stay home with her, but he is unable to simply sit there and wait for his wife to call. (R18) A recording made on Monday, July 11, 1988, two weeks after Peggy left (SR18-19), reveals that Victor secretly "bugged" the house and telephone in an effort to catch Peggy talking to their children and perhaps reveal her whereabouts. (SR19)

Victor next travelled to Ft. Lauderdale to see if

Peggy was staying with a friend she had known there in 1986, but

the effort proves useless. (SR19-20) His taped conversation

with himself is rambling: "I go nuts just looking around and

thinking. If she'd just call me and let me know what she's going

to do, what her intentions are and this and that there. I know

what my intentions are. If I catch her I'll probably want to,

want to kill her. But what's going to happen, she's going to

aggravate me so bad I'm going to wind up hurting her or hurt her

the rest of her life, I'm going to wind up killing her youngest

son just for spite. And I hate to do it but I will do it to hurt

her. 'Cause I can't, I can't live like this, it's bullshit. I

got to go to work tommorrow to earn a few dollars. And I'll talk

to you later." (SR20-21)

The next day, when going to Scotty's to purchase some paint, Victor lost over \$100 from his pocket and was unable to pay for the merchandise he had gathered. (SR23-24) Victor's rambling conversation with himself continued; "Well, today's about the sixteenth or seventeenth day that I haven't talked to

her or nothing. I'm getting closer and closer. Her mother's going to finally try to get her to call me. If she don't, I'm afraid that I'm going to hurt myself and I'm going to take one of her kids with me for spite on her if she don't talk to me. And I'm getting very, very close to it now. And I think that's what I'm going to wind up doing is killing myself and take her. I'm going to take one of the kids with me. I don't know which one. That's all for now." (SR25)

By the thirteenth of July, Victor's thoughts turned to his daughter. He states, "Well, it's the thirteenth of July. It's about 4 o'clock. I just hooked up a fan in my daughter's room and that, but tonight that's it. What I'm going to do, Peggy's going to suffer for the rest of her life. If she don't call me by eleven o'clock tonight or twelve, what I'm going to do, I'm going to kill my daughter. I hate to do it, but the kid, she worries too much about money and this and that there and everything so I'm going to kill her." (SR25-26) The conversations with himself continued, even after the murder had been committed: "Well, I'm up north here driving over the east side now. Everybody knows what happened now, it's all over. I don't believe that my son Victor asked me if she suffered. suffered, she didn't. It was over one, two, three. But everybody likes to tell me she was hurt really bad with it." (SR27)

Elizabeth's boyfriend discovered her body. (R388) She died from a single gunshot wound to the head just behind her right ear. (R152) Death was immediate. (R147-48) A psychiatrist

who examined Klokoc gave an account of what happened based on an he had with Victor:

Q (By Mr. Braedyn): Okay. In talking to Mr. Klokoc, did you inquire of him regarding the circumstances of the crime of which he was charged?

A: Yes, I did.

Q: Was he able to relate to you the details of the murder?

A. Yes.

Q. Can you tell us what he told you in that regard?

Again, it's been a long time and I don't take completely detailed notes, but I try to remember the principal and things like that which are important. And he indicated that he had had, been sitting at home and had drank several beers during the evening. When I say several, I believe he said three or four. And he was sitting there thinking about what a rough life his daughter was having and he didn't want her to go through what he had gone through. And he decided, and he used the term like, you know, if you've got a sick dog, I believe it was a dog, some kind of non-human animal, you know, and they're hurting, you don't leave them in their misery, you put them out of their misery. And he said he decided to put his daughter out of her misery because he didn't want her to have to go through anything. He went into the bedroom. He said that she was asleep. He said that he shot her in the head, went back in and sat down and was trying to get up the nerve to shoot himself and he said he sat there for quite some time but he was not able to do that.

(R181-182)

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

POINT I: The death sentence must be reversed and a sentence of life imprisonment imposed because there is no valid statutory aggravating factor here upon which to base the death penalty. The factor found by the trial judge was that the murder was cold, calculated and premeditated, with no pretense of moral or legal justification. That factor is invalid for several reasons. factor is unconstitutionally vague under the Eighth and Fourteenth Amendments. Assuming that sole factor to be constitutional, is nonetheless unsupported by the evidence, in that at least a "pretense" of moral or legal justification exists, as that term has been defined by this Court. Finally, assuming that the factor is constitutional and assuming that it is supported by the evidence, imposition of the death sentence based on that one factor is disproportionate to the mitigation that exists. Court has never before affirmed imposition of the death penalty based on this single statutory aggravating factor. The cases where the death sentence has been affirmed based on a single factor have all involved torture murders with little or no mitigation and the statutory aggravating factor of an especially heinous, atrocious or cruel murder. The mitigation that exists here, as found by the trial court, prevents this crime from being the most aggravated and unmitigated of serious crimes. The death penalty was not intended for this type crime. Accordingaly, the death sentence must be reversed and the matter remanded for imposition of a sentence of life imprisonment, with no parole for twenty-five years.

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