## IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

VICTOR GOLDIE KLOKOC,

Appellant/Cross-appellee,

v. C

CASE NO. 74,146

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee/Cross-appellant.

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE EIGHTEENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR BREVARD COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE/INITIAL BRIEF OF CROSS-APPELLANT

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

MARGENE A. ROPER FL. BAR #302015

BARBARA C. DAVIS FL. BAR. #410519 ASSISTANT ATTORNEYS GENERAL 210 N. Palmetto Avenue Suite 447 Daytona Beach, Florida 32114 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

#

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

As Klokoc observes, this court has upheld death sentences when there exists only one aggravating circumstance (Initial Brief at 22). Arango v. State, 411 So. 2d 172 (Fla. 1982) involved a murder in which the victim was beat and shot in the

head in his bedroom. The sole aggravating circumstance was "heinous, atrocious, or cruel ("HAC") and the mitigation was "no prior criminal history". This court stated:

[t]he death penalty does not contemplate "a mere tabulation of aggravating versus mitigating to arrive a net sum." Instead, it places upon the trial judge the task of weighing all these factors.

The trial judge in this case weighed the aggravating and mitigating circumstances and found the aggravating circumstance clearly outweighed the mitigation. (R. 574) This court has often stated that the procedure is not a counting procedure, but is a weighing procedure.

On review of a death sentence this court's role is not to cast aside careful deliberation which the matter of sentence has already received by the jury and trial judge, unless there has been a material departure by either of them from their proper prescribed functions, or unless it appears that, in view of other decisions, concerning imposition of the death penalty, punishment is too great. Hargrave v. State, 366 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1978). As in Arango "The trial court properly performed this function." Id. at 175. Furthermore, as argued on cross appeal, the aggravating factor of pecuniary gain also applies in this case.

The other cases cited by Klokoc in which this court upheld death sentences where only one aggravating factor existed are Gardner v. State, 313 So. 2d 675 (Fla. 1975), Douglas v. State, 328 So. 2d 18 (Fla. 1976) and LeDuc v. State, 365 So. 2d 149 (Fla. 1978). Gardner involved a "crime of passion in a marital setting in which the excessive use of alcohol was a material

factor resulting in the homicide". See dissent by Justice Ervin, Gardner at 679. The sole aggravating factor was HAC, and the trial court found no mitigation; however, as pointed out by the dissent, mitigation existed. Justice Ervin also observed that, in his opinion, a "drunken spree" does not warrant the death penalty, but if there had been a calculated design and premeditation to rid one of his spouse, death would be warranted. In Douglas the defendant murdered his wife's friend. In LeDuc the defendant raped and murdered a nine-year-old girl. The court observed that although mitigation might exist, it would not change the trial court's ruling. The above cases which Klokoc cites to show his death sentence is disproportionate, actually show his sentence is proportionate. The above cases involved a shooting in a bedroom, a crime of passion in a marital setting, a wife's friend, and a child. Although the cases cited by Klokoc all involve the HAC factor, this does not mean a death sentence cannot be upheld where the single aggravating factor is CCP. is doubtful this court has carved out a rule that a death sentence can only be upheld if HAC is present. The more logical conclusion is that to date there has not been a case in which the murder was as egregious as this one where other aggravating factors were not present. This court simply has not been presented with the opportunity to uphold a case in which CCP is only aggravating circumstance. Klokoc presents that opportunity. Death is not too great a punishment in this case where Klokoc planned the execution of his own daughter in order to revenge himself on the wife who absconded from his abuse.

Although Klokoc argues that the mitigation is significant, the trial court's order negates this argument. The trial court discredited much of the mitigation and gave the rest little weight as follows:

- (a) Defendant has no significant history of prior criminal history. This circumstance is substantially diminished by Defendant's admittedly criminal abuse of his wife. On August 7, 1987, Defendant forced her into a motel room on Merritt Island, tied her to the taped her mouth, raped her continually threatened to kill her. On April 7, 1988, Defendant forced his wife into the tool box on his pick-up truck, locked the box, rode her around and periodically threatened to kill her.
- (b) Defendant was under the influence mental or emotional disturbance when the capital felony was committed; however, this disturbance was some two weeks in duration, of the same intensity, and did not in any sense deprive Defendant of his self control or appreciation of the wrongness of the homicide.
- (c) The Defendant's capacity to conform his conduct to the requirements of law was impaired by his love/revenge emotions towards his wife, who Defendant perversely possessed. Psychologist Greenblum diagnosed Defendant as sane at the time of the capital felony, competent to stand trial, competent participate in the penalty phase of proceeding, and Defendant suffered with a personality disturbance but not any mental illness. Psychologist Wooten diagnosed Defendant as not insane at the time of the offense (though Defendant was under extreme emotional distress), competent to stand trial, competent to participate in the penalty phase proceeding, and Defendant did suffer from a bipolar affective disorder, manic type with paranoid features. Defendant's violence toward his family had caused them to "Baker Act" him in March, 1988, and he was released after a minimal stay in the hospital. It is finding Court's that Defendant's consistent cadence over the two week period preceding the murder was: "someone close to my wife is going to die unless I get my way- I know it is wrong, but I need to be satisfied-

and this seems logical to me", which cadence is congruent with Dr. Greenblum's diagnosis.

- (d) Defendant had been a good material provider for his family. He was forced at a young age to take his deceased father's place as the head of the family. In doing so, Defendant met his responsibility capably, though violently at times. Defendant has not been shown by the evidence to have had an alcohol problem, though he regularly consumed beer.
- (e) The mitigating circumstance of Defendant's troubled family relationship has been brought out, aforesaid. This trouble lies at the feet of Defendant's need to possess his family. Defendant eloquently exhibits this in his last recorded telephone conversation with Jason, the same being secretly recorded by Defendant.

(R 572-574).

It is well established that it is up to the trial court to decide if any particular mitigating circumstance has been established and the weight to given it. Hudson v. State, 538 So.2d 829, 831 (Fla. 1989); Scull v. State, 533 So.2d 1137, 1143 (Fla. 1988). "It is not the function of this Court to substitute its sentencing judgement for that of the trial judge". Bryan v. State, 533 So.2d 744, 749 (Fla. 1988). Klokoc does not argue that the trial court failed to consider any mitigation or that his findings were erroneous, only that the mitigation which existed outweighed the aggravating circumstance. However, he fails to recognize that much of the mitigation presented was discredited.

Klokoc was fortunate in having the trial judge find mental mitigating factors at all and was not entitled to them. A sociopath who is capable of self-control and can appreciate the wrongness of his conduct but likes to have things his own way and

felt that he could "commit murder, do his time, and not be bothered" is not the embodiment of one acting under emotional disturbance (R 103, 55-57) unless baser personality characteristics such as spite and the desire for omnipotence (in this case practiced over the duration of the marriage) can be deemed ameliorative. It is also clear that he could conform his conduct to the law but chose not to in furtherance of his "see you in hell" attitude toward his wife, for which he felt he would suffer little, do some time, get out and not be bothered (R 55-Perhaps Klokoc would not have such a deep seated "need to be satisfied" had he a glimpse of his own fate as a consequence of his vindictiveness toward the "chattel" he had married. clear Klokoc weighed the joys of diabolical vindictiveness against the consequences and determined it would be worth it to indulge his perversity. This is not the same thing as incapacity to conform to the requirements of law.

Klokoc's death sentence is proportionate. This court has upheld death sentences in situations involving helpless and innocent children, family relationship and domestic settings.

Dobbert v. State, 328 So. 2d 433 (Fla. 1976)(defendant killed his son and daughter); Hitchcock v. State, 413 So. 2d 741 (Fla. 1982)(defendant killed his brother's stepdaughter in her bedroom); Tompkins v. State, 502 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1986) (defendant knew fifteen-year-old victim, had access to home, and killed victim in home then buried her under the house); Adams v. State, 412 So.2d 850 (Fla. 1982)(defendant familiar with eight-year-old victim who could identify him); Doyle v. State, 460 So.2d 353

(Fla. 1984), (family relative killed their daughter); Correll v. State, 523 So.2d 562 (Fla. 1988), (defendant murdered wife and daughter); Williams v. State, 437 So.2d 133 (Fla. 1983), (defendant murdered his girlfriend). The death penalty has been affirmed in similar cases and should be affirmed here.

#### POINT II

KLOKOC'S ALLEGATION THAT THE DEATH PENALTY IS ARBITRARILY AND CAPRICIOUSLY APPLIED HAS NOT BEEN PRESENTED FOR APPELLATE REVIEW AND IS WITHOUT MERIT.

Klokoc argues that the Florida death penalty because the aggravating and mitigating unconstitutional circumstances do not limit the class of persons eligible for the penalty, and the factors are applied arbitrarily. death Specifically, he argues that CCP and "pretense of moral or legal justification" have been applied inconsistently to the same or similar fact patterns and that CCP is an automatic aggravating circumstance which automatically shifts the burden of proof to a defendant in the penalty phase.

The specific constitutional challenges raised for the first time by the Klokoc were never presented to, nor determined by, the trial court to preserve the issue for appellate review. Klokoc's clear procedural default in failing to contemporaneously raise and have the trial court determine the issues, should be dispositive. The claims should be specifically rejected for failure to preserve the issues below. Swafford v. State, 533 So.2d 270, 278 (Fla. 1988); Eutzy v. State, 458 So.2d 755,757 (Fla. 1984).

Appellant concedes that the United States Supreme Court has already determined that Florida's death penalty statute is facially constitutional and that the statutes and procedures are constitutionally applied. Proffitt v. Florida, 428 U.S. 242 (1976). However, appellant suggests that this court's body of decisional law regarding the death penalty demonstrates a pattern of inconsistent application of the death penalty statutes rendering those statutes unconstitutional as applied.

Although Klokoc attacks all the aggravating circumstances as subjective, only the cold, calculated and premeditated ("CCP") circumstance was applied to his case. Klokoc has no standing to challenge the constitutionality of those portions of Florida's death penalty statutes that do not affect him. Clark v. State, 443 So. 2d 973, n. 2 (Fla. 1983).

Klokoc misapprehends the law when he concludes that this court's consistency in applying its own decisional law is paramount. The state respectfully submits that this court's analysis of its own decisional law is only a vehicle by which this court can review each sentence of death on a case-by-case basis. An individual review of each death sentence is bound to produce some variance in decisional law. The state submits that such a variance is attributable to the uniqueness of each case and does not demonstrate an arbitrary and capricious imposition of Florida's death penalty statutes. Contrary to the appellant's view, this court is not lost in the wilderness of capital punishment constitutional law. With its prior decisions as its compass, this court can chart a clear course to apply Florida's

death penalty statutes logically, faithfully, and constitutionally. Thus the appellant's claims under this issue should be rejected and the imposition of his sentences of death should be affirmed as constitutional.

Klokoc's argument that the CCP aggravating circumstance is impermissibly vague under Maynard v. Cartwright, 486 U.S. \_\_\_\_, 108 S. Ct. 1853, 100 L.Ed.2d 372 (1988), is without merit. Smith v. State, 15 FLW S81 (Fla. Feb. 15, 1990). Klokoc also recognizes this court's decision in Dixon v. State, 283 So.2d 1 (1973), which decided this issue adverse to appellant's position. (Initial Brief at 35).

Constitutional challenges have been repeatedly rejected by this court. Mendyk v. State, 545 So.2d. 946 (Fla. 1989); Stano v. State, 460 So.2d 890 (Fla. 1984). The Florida death penalty statute has repeatedly survived constitutional challenges. Barclay v. Florida, Proffitt v. Florida, Dixon v. State, supra.

In <u>Spaziano v. Florida</u>, 468 U.S. 447, 104 S.Ct. 3154, 82 L.Ed.2d 340 (1984), the United States Supreme Court again specifically validated Florida's death penalty procedure stating that:

The Florida Supreme Court must review every capital sentence to insure that the penalty has not been imposed arbitrarily or capriciously. Sec. 921.141(4). As Justice Stevens noted in Barclay, there is no evidence that the Florida Supreme Court has failed in its responsibility to perform meaningful appellate review of each death sentence, either in cases in which both the jury and the trial court have concluded that death is the appropriate penalty or in cases when the jury

has recommended life and the trial court has overridden the jury's recommendation and sentenced the defendant to defendant to death. See <u>Barclay v. Florida</u>, 463 U.S., at 971-972, and n. 23, 103 S.Ct., at 3436, and n. 23. (opinion concurring in judgment).

468 U.S. at 466.

In <u>Spaziano</u> the Court also observed that it had twice concluded that Florida has struck a reasonable balance between sensitivity to the individual and his circumstances and ensuring that the death penalty is not imposed arbitrarily or discriminatorily, citing Barclay and <u>Proffitt</u>, 468 U.S. at 464.

There is no question that the murder of Klokoc's daughter was cold, calculated and premeditated under the requirements of Rogers v. State, 511 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1987). The cases argued by Klokoc to obfuscate the issue are incomparable to the present case in which Klokoc carefully planned and executed the murder. Rogers is the applicable rule, which receded from Herring v. State, 446 So.2d 1049 (Fla. 1984). This court decides cases on a case-by-case basis, and no case is exactly the same. This does not mean it is inconsistently applied.

Klokoc argues that the second prong "pretense of legal or moral justification" is also inconsistently applied, yet admits that until now the only recognized pretense is a 'colorable' claim of self-defense. (Initial Brief at 34)

There was no pretense <u>moral</u> or <u>legal</u> justification in this case, which is similar to <u>Turner v. State</u>, 530 So.2d 51 (Fla. 1988). In Turner, this court found that whether the defendant believed a lesbian seduced his wife and took his family was not a

pretense of moral or legal justification. Klokoc would ask this court to believe that because he has a psychiatric disturbance, he should be judged by a special definition of "personal morality" (Initial Brief at 45), yet he points to no personal moral or legal reason for executing his daughter. Revenge simply is not a moral reason for murder. If Klokoc checked his Webster's 3rd New International Dictionary at p. 1468, he would find that the synonyms of "moral" are ethical, virtuous, righteous and noble. Webster further explains "moral" as designating conformity to established sanctioned codes or accepted notions of right and wrong. It is doubtful that murder will ever be the established sanctioned code.

Klokoc could distinguish cases ad nauseam in which the CCP factor was applied and rejected. However, the fact remains that this factor was clearly present in his case and not capriciously applied. He contradicts himself in first citing cases in which the CCP factor was rejected and then arguing that the factor could be automatically applied (Initial Brief at 55).

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